
15.0198.03000 

Amendment to: HB 1158 

FISCAL NOTE 

Requested by Legislative Council 
01/08/2015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d d d I eve s an appro1:mat1ons ant1c1pate un er current aw. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $111,209 

Appropriations $111,209 

2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$(14,672) 

$(14,672) 

1 8. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

The bill amends sections of the NDCC relating to the issuance of game and fish licenses; and provides an effective 
date. This bill would remove the mandate of county auditors to issue game and fish licenses and to appoint agents. 

8. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

The department would need to hire one new FTE and would have increased on-going operating costs and a one­
time programming cost. This bill would also eliminate the cost of commissions paid to county auditors, which is 
currently a standing and continuing appropriation from the game and fish fund. After the first year, it would result in a 
slight decrease of our expenditures. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

None anticipated. 

8. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The department would need to hire one new FTE, effective July 1, 2015. Currently county auditors are responsible 
for appointing the agents, bonding them, collecting revenue, issuing them license tags and guides, and answering 
questions. The 53 county auditors manage approx. 400 agents across the state. If county auditors no longer sell 
Game and Fish licenses and manage the agents, this entire responsibility would be on the department's licensing 
section which only consists of 4 Licensing Specialists. It would not be possible for Game and Fish to manage 
approx. 400 agents, at the current staffing level, to provide the necessary fiscal management, training of the online 
system, monthly correspondence, daily questions, etc. A new FTE would cost the department approximately 
$108,028 salary/benefits (salary data taken from the Governor's compensation package), $8,800 operating costs 



and $9,500 travel per biennium. 
While the effective date of this bill is for the next licensing season (April 1, 2016), the new FTE would need to be 
hired by July 1, 2015 to allow for an orderly transition of taking over managing the agents and getting them online to 
issue licenses; currently there are approx. 71 agents online. This hire date only allows for approx. 8 months to put 
procedures in place, to have all agents bonded, and to perform online training of approx. 300 of the 400 agents. The 
department would want agents online for a month before the new license season begins April 1, 2016. 
The proposed bill would also require one-time programming costs, in 2015-17, to our Game and Fish online 
licensing system of $55,381 per a quote from ITD. This programming will setup an ACH payment collection that will 
sweep the agent's accounts twice a month and deposit money into the Game & Fish fund. 
This bill also would decrease our expenditures by approx. $70,500 per year because it eliminates the cost of 
commissions paid to county auditors. These commissions are based on license sales, so they fluctuate from year to 
year. The above amount is the average of the past two years of commissions paid to county auditors. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

This bill would require an additional FTE (Licensing Specialist II) in the amount of $108,028 for salaries and benefits 
and $18,300 in additional on-going operating costs totaling $126,328 for the biennium. Plus an additional one-time 
expenditure in 2015-17 for programming costs for the licensing system of $55,381. It would eliminate the 
commissions paid to county auditors for the issuance of licenses which is approximately $70,500 for one year. Since 
the bill would not take effect until April 1, 2016 there would only be one year of savings of not paying county auditor 
commissions in 2015-17. After the first year, this bill would result in a slight decrease of our expenditures. 
15-17: 108,028 + 18,300 + 55,381 - 70,500 = 111,209 
17-19: 108,028 + 18,300 - 141,000 = (14,672) Expenditure savings 

Name: Kim Kary 

Agency: ND Game and Fish Dept. 

Telephone: 328-6605 

Date Prepared: 01/21/2015 



• 

15.0198.02000 

Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1158 

FISCAL NOTE 

Requested by Legislative Council 
01/08/2015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d d d ti eve s an appropnat1ons ant1cmate un er curren 

2013-2015 Biennium 

aw. 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $111,209 

Appropriations $111,209 

2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$(14,672) 

$(14,672) 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

The bill amends sections of the NDCC relating to the issuance of game and fish licenses; and provides an effective 
date. This bill would remove the mandate of county auditors to issue game and fish licenses and to appoint agents. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

The department would need to hire one new FTE and would have increased on-going operating costs and a one­
time programming cost. This bill would also eliminate the cost of commissions paid to county auditors, which is 
currently a standing and continuing appropriation from the game and fish fund. After the first year, it would result in a 
slight decrease of our expenditures. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

None anticipated. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The department would need to hire one new FTE, effective July 1, 2015. Currently county auditors are responsible 
for appointing the agents, bonding them, collecting revenue, issuing them license tags and guides, and answering 
questions. The 53 county auditors manage approx. 400 agents across the state. If county auditors no longer sell 
Game and Fish licenses and manage the agents, this entire responsibility would be on the department's licensing 
section which only consists of 4 Licensing Specialists. It would not be possible for Game and Fish to manage 
approx. 400 agents, at the current staffing level, to provide the necessary fiscal management, training of the online 
system, monthly correspondence, daily questions, etc. A new FTE would cost the department approximately 
$108,028 salary/benefits (salary data taken from the Governor's compensation package), $8,800 operating costs 



and $9,500 travel per biennium. 
While the effective date of this bill is for the next licensing season (April 1, 2016), the new FTE would need to be 
hired by July 1, 2015 to allow for an orderly transition of taking over managing the agents and getting them online to 
issue licenses; currently there are approx. 71 agents online. This hire date only allows for approx. 8 months to put 
procedures in place, to have all agents bonded, and to perform online training of approx. 300 of the 400 agents. The 
department would want agents online for a month before the new license season begins April 1, 2016. 
The proposed bill would also require one-time programming costs, in 2015-17, to our Game and Fish online 
licensing system of $55,381 per a quote from ITD. This programming will setup an ACH payment collection that will 
sweep the agent's accounts twice a month and deposit money into the Game & Fish fund. 
This bill also would decrease our expenditures by approx. $70,500 per year because it eliminates the cost of 
commissions paid to county auditors. These commissions are based on license sales, so they fluctuate from year to 
year. The above amount is the average of the past two years of commissions paid to county auditors. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

This bill would require an additional FTE (Licensing Specialist II) in the amount of $108,028 for salaries and benefits 
and $18,300 in additional on-going operating costs totaling $126,328 for the biennium. Plus an additional one-time 
expenditure in 2015-17 for progra.mming costs for the licensing system of $55,381. It would eliminate the 
commissions paid to county auditors for the issuance of licenses which is approximately $70,500 for one year. Since 
the bill would not take effect until April 1, 2016 there would only be one year of savings of not paying county auditor 
commissions in 2015-17. After the first year, this bill would result in a slight decrease of our expenditures. 
15-17: 108,028 + 18,300 + 55,381 - 70,500 = 111,209 
17-19: 108,028 + 18,300-141,000 = (14,672) Expenditure savings 

Name: Kim Kary 

Agency: ND Game and Fish Dept. 

Telephone: 328-6605 

Date Prepared: 01/21/2015 

• 



2015 HOUSE ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

HB 1158 



2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Energy and Natural Resources Committee 
Pioneer Room, State Capitol 

HB 1158 
1/22/2015 

22391 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature ;Jfi 2� 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the issuance of game and fish licenses; and to provide an effective date. 

Chairman Porter opens hearing. 
II A�chments #2 

Minutes: 

Testimony in Support: 

Representative Jim Schmidt, District 31 
This Bill is brought forth by the North Dakota Association of Counties and North Dakota 
Game and Fish. I've had several meetings with them and I fully support this Bill. This Bill 
removes the mandate that county auditors issue Game and Fish licenses and provides 
them with the opportunity to participate if they wish. If you are one of the western counties 
and you wish not to participate, you can opt-out. If you are another county and you wish to 
do this you can opt-in. As such, it does place more responsibility on the Game and Fish to 
conduct this activity. With that I would direct your questions to Kim and Donnell. They can 
provide you with far better information on this than I can. 

Rep. Mike Nathe: You being in appropriations, it says that the department would have 
to hire one new FTE, is that why the fiscal note is the way it is? 

Representative Schmidt: Yes, it is. We took the responsibility back from the counties and 
the counties that were putting hourly time into that effort. The counties were paying for it 
before and now we will give that to the Game and Fish. For the tax payer it's a wash, it's 
going from the county to the state. 

Denelle Preskey, North Dakota Association of Counties, Executive Director of 
County Auditors and Treasurers (Written testimony #1) 

Rep. Bill Devlin: Can you explain further on the reimbursements on the chart on the 
bottom of page 2. 



House Energy and Natural Resources Committee 
HB 1158 
1/22/2015 
Page 2 

Preskey: I received the reimbursement numbers to counties from Game and Fish they may 
be able to elaborate on that. From what I understand of the reimbursement, the number of 
licenses is also part of that. But, Game and Fish should clarify that question. 

Rep. Bob Hunskor: For Counties that opt not to issue licenses, Game and Fish takes 
over. The folks that live in those counties who do not access to working online what would 
the plan be to make it accessible to them? 

Preskey: Game and Fish is assuming the responsibility of what the 53 county auditors do, 
in working with the venders that are supplying the Game and Fish licenses. You will still be 
able to go to a business and get your license. The difference is that the county auditor is no 
longer the middle man. 

Kim Kary, Chief Administrative Services Division, North Dakota Game and Fish 
Department (Written testimony #2) 

Chairman Porter: In side of your budget, how many new FTEs are in your budget in the 
Senate? 

Kary: Currently, in the governor's recommended budget, we have four. 

Chairman Porter: Are any of them in this department? 

Kary: No. 

Rep. Bill Devlin: I understand that the reimbursement to the counties, are the 
commissions, is there anything else that they are reimbursed in any way for? 

Kary: Yes, if you read the law it's broken out into types of schedules. It's a different fee for 
non-residents etc. The amounts we pay them are the commissions that they earn. 

Mike Rud, North Dakota Petroleum Marketers and Retail Association 
We represent a large majority of the folks who sell the licenses across the state. We stand 
in support of HB 1158. It's not only been a burden for the county auditors, it has been a 
burden for our members as well. Our labor has shrunk and we are doing more and more 
with less and less. In the work force, we've run into some training issues with the paper 
licenses. The marketer who's selling those licenses is financially liable. If you lose one of 
those books, its 35 dollars a license, that's 350 dollars. If a marketer can't find a book they 
are out 350 dollars. We have wanted it for a long time, to take that burden off of our people. 
In the world we live in now, with the online situation it shouldn't be too much of a problem 
for folks to get their licenses. It a marketer wants to set up a computer in their shop there 
are still able to do that and sell a license right there. With that I would ask for your support 
of HB 1158. 

Opposition: None 

Chairman Porter closes hearing. 



2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Energy and Natural Resources Committee 
Pioneer Room, State Capitol 

1158 
1/22/2015 

22398 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature di;fJ', 2L/L-
Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the issuance of game and fish licenses; and to provide an effective date. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Porter opens the hearing. 

Chairman Porter: This Bill, if passed, will need in the motion a rereferral to appropriations. 
Because it does have one FTE component in the Bill. 

Rep. Bill Devlin Moves a do pass with a rereferral to appropriations. 

Rep. Dick Anderson: Second. 

Chairman Porter: discussion? Seeing no discussion the clerk will call a roll for do pass 
and rereferral to appropriations on HB 1158. 

Vote: Yes 12, No 0, Absent 1 

Carrier: Rep. Bill Devlin 



Date: \ / z.i. / zoiS 
Roll Call Vote #: \ 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB \ \ 5 8 
House Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: L.-"'-1���������������������� 

Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

ia"'Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
!M"'Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By RP�. \)e)J \1 o Seconded By Q e�. TI . A� CPC\ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes, No 
Chairman Porter 1/ Rep Hunskor 1/ 
Vice Chairman Damschen v Rep Mock / A-
Rep D Anderson v Rep Muscha v 
Rep Brabandt v 
Rep Devlin v 
Rep Froseth v 
Rep Hofstad v 
Rep Keiser t/" 
Rep Lefor v 
Rep Nathe v 

Total (Yes) 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



-· 

Com Standing Committee Report 
January 22, 2015 3:21pm 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_13_017 
Carrier: Devlin 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1158: Energy and Natural Resources Committee (Rep. Porter, Chairman) 

recommends DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee 
(12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1158 was rereferred to the 
Appropriations Committee. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_ 13_017 



2015 HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS 

HB 1158 



2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

HB 1158 
2/11/2015 

23690 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
Relating to the issuance of game and fish licenses; and to provide an effective date. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Jeff Delzer opened the meeting. 

Representative Todd Porter, District 34, Mandan: spoke as Chairman of the Energy and 
Natural Resources Committee (where bill originated). This bill takes the county auditor out 
of the requirements dealing with the selling of game and fish licenses. 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 
But with an FTE, costs would not settle back down; costs would continue. 

Porter: So would the responsibilities of being the one issuing the books. And the 
responsibilities we are taking from the auditor's; we would move it to game and fish. 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 

Frankly this bill does not give an FTE, but that's what the fiscal note says would be 
required. We'll have the game and fish budget the second half. Whatever we do, we won't 
put an FTE in the bill. We will worry about that when we come to the second half. 



2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

HB 1158 
2/16/2015 

23937 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the issuance of game and fish licenses; and to provide an effective 
date. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 
Shows the fiscal impact of this year; we don't have the Game and Fish budget until the 
second half. This came out of Natural Resources; 12 - 0 do pass. 

Motion for a Do Pass by Representative Schmidt 
Seconded by Representative Boe 

Representative Monson 
Have had comments about smaller rural vendors that have fewer and fewer opportunities to 
sell licenses; so what is the impact?? 

Representative Schmidt 
It has none. Puts the responsibility on licensing back on the Game and Fish the . . .  position 
and look at what was being paid by Game and Fish; that equals the one full time equivalent 
(FTE). 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 
The main street vendors . . .  

Representative Schmidt 
Computer system 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 
They still have the paper licenses and stuff they can give out there, right? 

Representative Schmidt 
Think so 



House Appropriations Committee 
HB 1158 
02/16/15 
Page 2 

Representative Boe 
Last time it saw a book was a long time ago. 
And this is in code that the county auditor doesn't have a choice and if they don't have the 
staff. 

Motion made for a DP made by Representative Schmidt 
Second by Representative Boe 

Yes: 21, No 2, Absent 0 
Carrier: Representative Devlin 

Hearing closed. 



• 
2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 

ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILURESOLUTION NO. I I ----��-----

Date: --� ....... '-"'-'"'-"-"#�C-__ _ 
Roll Call Vote#: -----'L'-------

House Appropriations Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Recommendation: 

Other Actions: 

!Motion Made By: 

Representatives 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 

Vice Chairman Keith Kemcenich 

Recresentative Bellew 

1=9·· """'•"'""' 
ve Boehnina 

Recresentative Dosch 

Representative Kreidt 

Recresentative Martinson 

Recresentative Monson 

Totals 

(Yes) 

No 

Absent 

Grand Total 

Floor Assignment: 

0 Subcommittee 

D �pt Amendment 

P'f>o Pass D Do Not Pass 

D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 

D Reconsider 

Yes No Absent Representatives 

/ Recresentative Nelson 

v Representative Poller! 

r./ Recresentative Sanford 

v Representative Schmidt 

I Recresentative Silbemaael 

/ Recresentative Skarnhol 

/ Representative Strevle 

i/ Recresentative Thoreson 

/ Recresentative Vioesaa 

7 ;!. 0 

}7A Seconded By: Q/1.,__ 

Yes No Absent Representatives 

,/ Recresentative Boe 

i/ Representative Glassheim 

._./ Recresentative Guooisbero 

V' Representative Hoaan 

./ Representative Holman 

/ 
,/ 
/ 
� 
q 0 0 

Yes No 

1/ 
v" 

v' 
V" 
// . 

) 0 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly Indicate Intent: --------------------------------

Absent 

0 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 17, 2015 8:50am 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_31_002 
Carrier: Devlin 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1158: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, Chairman) recommends DO PASS 

(21 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1158 was placed on the 
Eleventh order on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_31_002 



2015 SENATE ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

HB 1158 



2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Energy and Natural Resources 
Fort Lincoln Room, State Capitol 

HB 1158 
3/13/2015 

24813 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the issuance of game and fish licenses 

Minutes: 3 Attachments 

Representative Jim Schmidt: This bill comes to us from the County auditors via the North 
Dakota Association of Counties. HB 1158 relates to the issuance of game and fish licenses 
and currently county auditors are responsible for appointing the agents, bonding them, 
collecting revenue, issuing them license tags, guides and answering questions. The 53 
county auditors manage 400 agents across the state with the added workload of auditors, 
especially in the west, they have requested that this be an optional duty. This would 
remove the mandate of county auditors to issue game and fish licenses and to appoint 
agents, this give the auditors to opt in or opt out of doing this activity. With this there is a 
fiscal note; I believe that there is someone here from game and fish that would be more 
suited to explain that than I would. There is also some timelines in this bill that deals with 
computerized fishing and hunting licenses. 

Chairman Schaible: They are currently required to do this and this bill would make it 
optional? 

Representative Schmidt: Yes. Some counties will continue and some will be able to opt out. 
Chairman Schaible: Is it necessary? 

Kim Kary: Chief Administrative Services Division of the North Dakota Game and Fish 
Department. See attachment #1. (2:54-8:06) 

Senator Murphy: You have dealt with the county auditors for years, do you see any holes in 
the state, rural areas that don't have a county auditor is it easy to find people to see 
theses? 

Kim Kary: There is a possibility that in a county they may be fewer vendors to sell licenses 
but we are also selling them online. We are thinking that the world will be going that way, 
there are auditors that are understaffed but they have set up a computer and they can buy 
their license that way. We will adjust and try to recruit as it goes forward. 



Senate Energy and Natural Resources Committee 
HB 1158 
03/13/2015 
Page 2 

Chairman Schaible: Going online having vendors and such helps in that endeavor? 

Kim Kary: That is a good question; a lot of people forget to buy it before they leave for the 
hunt. 

Danell Pres key: North Dakota Association of Counties. See attachment #2. (12:36-15: 10) 

Jeff Bitz: Special Funds Administrator, North Dakota Insurance Department. See 
attachment #3. (16:06-18:14) 

Senator Triplett: The bill has a delayed implementation so you would keep the agents 
through 2016? 

Jeff Bitz: Yes, that is correct. 

Chairman Schaible then closed the public hearing on HB 1158. 

Senator Latten made a motion to adopt the amendment with a second by Senator Murphy. 

Kim Kary: We were hoping that you would hold this bill until we could get a chance with 
House Appropriations to put the FTE in our appropriation. This would need to get re­
referred to Senate Appropriations. 

Senator Hogue: What typically is the cash they accumulate? 

Kim Kary: It could in 5 or 6 figures 

Senator Triplett: Go you like Mr. Bitz's amendment? 

Kim Kary: When we were looking at all the laws that this affected we happened to not 
notice that one and yes, it would track with what we are doing and we are in agreement 
with it. 

Roll was taken, the motion passed on a 7-0-0 vote count. They committee then held the 
amended bill from any more action. 



2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Energy and Natural Resources 
Fort Lincoln Room, State Capitol 

HB 1158 
3/19/2015 

25106 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the issuance of game and fish licenses 

Minutes: 

Chairman Schaible called the committee to order and opened committee work on HB 1158. 

Senator Triplett: My notes on this bill say that we passed an amendment at the request of 
game and fish until the House acts on the FTE request, has that been done do you know? 

Robert Timian: Chief Game Warden for the North Dakota Game and Fish Department. 

Senator Triplett: The fiscal note on this bill says that game and fish would need to hire one 
more full time employee. Did they grant the FTE? 

Robert Timian: To my understanding yes, the original bill does not include an FTE but we 
would need an FTE and it would be paid for the money generated by taking over for the 
auditors but we did need to put that into our appropriation bill which is currently in process. 

Senator Armstrong: This is going to get re referred so they can hold it on the appropriations 
side. 

A motion was then made by Senator Armstrong for a do pass as amended with a re referral 
to appropriations, a second by Vice Chair Unruh, there was no further discussion, roll was 
taken and the motion passed 6-0-1 and Senator Armstrong carrying the bill to the floor. 



15.0198.02001 
Title.03000 

Adopted by the Energy and Natural Resource�s 
Committee 

March 19, 2015 

· �l\S 
� 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1158 

Page 1, line 1, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "20.1-03-20" insert ", and 26.1-21-09.1" 

Page 3, after line 30, insert: 

"SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-21-09.1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

26.1-21-09.1. Bonds of agents appointed to distribute hunting and fishing 
licenses or stamps - Premiums - Determination of eligibility. 

The annual premium for a bond of an agent appointed by a county auditorthe 
director of the game and fish department to distribute hunting and fishing licenses or 
stamps pursuant to section 20.1-03-17 is ten dollars. The premium must be paid to the 
fund pursuant to rules adopted by the commissioner. The commissioner shall deposit 
the premiums with the state treasurer to the credit of the fund. The commissioner may 
reduce or waive the premium if it is determined that funds received pursuant to this 
section are sufficient to cover potential claims on the bonds of agents appointed to 
distribute hunting and fishing licenses or stamps. The commissioner shall determine 
the conditions and qualifications of agents bonded under this section. The amount of 
coverage afforded under this section is fifteen thousand dollars per agent per year." 

Page 3, line 31, after "effective" insert "on" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0198.02001 



2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 1158 

Senate Energy and Natural Resources 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken Move Amendment 

Date: 3/13/2015 
Roll Call Vote #: 1 

Committee 

Motion Made By Senator Laffen Seconded By Senator Murphy 

Senators Yes No Senators Yes No 

Chairman Schaible x Senator Murphy x 
Vice Chair Unruh x Senator Triplett x 
Senator ArmstronQ x 
Senator Hogue x 
Senator Laffen x 

Total 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 1158 

Senate Energy and Natural Resources 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 15.0198.02001 

Action Taken Do Pass as Amended and Re Refer to Appropriations 

Date: 3/19/2015 
Roll Call Vote # .1... 

Committee 

Motion Made By Senator Armstrong Seconded By Vice Chair Unruh 

Senators Yes No Senators Yes No 

Chairman Schaible x Senator Murphy x 
Vice Chair Unruh x Senator Triplett x 
Senator Armstrong x 
C'---·-- •-•-- --- I-·- -:-1--

Senator Laffen x 

Total 

Floor Assignment Senator Armstrong 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
March 19, 2015 4:13pm 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_50_012 
Carrier: Armstrong 

Insert LC: 15.0198.02001 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1158: Energy and Natural Resources Committee (Sen. Schaible, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (6 YEAS, 
0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1158 was placed on the Sixth order on 
the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "20.1-03-20" insert ", and 26.1-21-09.1" 

Page 3, after line 30, insert: 

"SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-21-09.1 of the North Dakota 
Century C ode is amended and reenacted as follows: 

26.1-21-09.1. Bonds of agents appointed to distribute hunting and 
fishing licenses or stamps - Premiums - Determination of eligibility. 

The annual premium for a bond of an agent appointed by a oounty auditorthe 
director of the game and fish department to distribute hunting and fishing licenses or 
stamps pursuant to section 20.1-03-17 is ten dollars. The premium must be paid to 
the fund pursuant to rules adopted by the commissioner. The commissioner shall 
deposit the premiums with the state treasurer to the credit of the fund. The 
commissioner may reduce or waive the premium if it is determined that funds 
received pursuant to this section are sufficient to cover potential claims on the bonds 
of agents appointed to distribute hunting and fishing licenses or stamps. The 
commissioner shall determine the conditions and qualifications of agents bonded 
under this section. The amount of coverage afforded under this section is fifteen 
thousand dollars per agent per year." 

Page 3, line 31, after "effective" insert "on" 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_50_012 
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• 
2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

HB 1158 
3/30/2015 

Job # 25571 

0 Subcommittee 

0 Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections of N DCC, relating to the issuance of 
game and fish licenses; and to provide an effective date. ( Do Pass) 

Minutes: 1 -2 

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on Monday, March 30, 2015, at 9:00 
am in regards to HB 1158. All committee members were present. Chris Kadrmas, 
Legislative Council and Becky Deichert, OMS were also present. Lori Laschkewitsch, OMS, 
also was present. 

Chairman Holmberg: I had a meeting in the leader's office, regarding capital construction 
projects that the House passed over to us without discussion. They took them all out. And 
the questions was there were those who felt we should do is not do anything and let OMS 
make the determination as to what to do if anything. Both Majority Leader Wardner and 
myself were very uncomfortable turning over to essentially 4 people or 6 people to 
determine the directions we should go. The most disconcerting part of that is you would 
not have input, and what would happen is they would be handed to you the last day of the 
session, and you could not do any division or discussion; it was take it or leave it. So what 
we are going do in the Senate is the bills we have that have particular capital construction 
projects in them, we will do our own prioritizing. We will put them in the budgets, and then 
they will at least that gives everyone the opportunity to weigh in, and again, we have 
practically all I of capital construction projects in our budgets. We have Industrial 
Commission, we have Commerce, we have the University System, so we will, in the 
subcommittee, we will be working on that and that will be our position that we feel that the 
Senate should weigh in. That seemed a little fairer than asking Wardner and I. You say 
you are looking for advice, but you're looking for accomplices. This way we will have 
accomplices in whatever we do so that is what we are going to do. (21.37) 

Chairman Holmberg opened the hearing on HB 1158 and stated this one does have a 
fiscal note and we won't hold the bill if there are no questions. 

Kim Kary, Chief of Administrative Services Division of ND Game & Fish Department 
testified in support of HB 1158 and provided written Testimony Attached # 1, This bill 



Senate Appropriations Committee 
HB 1158 
03-30-2015 
Page 2 

relates to the county auditors selling licenses. It's important that this FTE gets added. We 
had a hearing last week that this will come up in conference. We would respectfully 
request that this is an important FTE and ask your consideration for that in this matter. 

Senator Carlisle: This is one new FTE. That was confirmed. 

Ms. Kary: this was not in the original bill. 

Senator Robinson asked if there is no impact on the vendors. 

Ms. Kary: No impact, they have to have a computer, and have a line connection. Other 
than that there is no cost. 

Senator Robinson: What do they get? 

Ms. Kary: They get .50 cents per license that they can tack on for their expenses. 

Senator Robinson: Many do benefit from having them purchase a license at these 
vendors and perhaps buy merchandise there, hunting supplies and such. 

Senator Kilzer: Why wouldn't you put an amendment on the original bill? 

Ms. Kary: This bill came in later. 

Senator Kilzer: Are you testifying in favor of the bill. He was told yes. 

V. Chairman Krebsbach Did I hear you say it was optional for the county auditors to retain 
it? 

Ms. Kary: We met with all the county auditors. They wanted to still sell licenses. I do not 
know how many want to stay in, that is why we left it that way, if they want to they can. 

Senator Wanzek: Are you seeing more individuals going on line? 

Ms. Kary: Each year, now that we have a mobile app for the smart phone. A lot of non­
residences they seem to like to come to the bait shops, we are seeing an increase of 
online sales, we still need vendors across the state. 

Senator Erbele: But if the auditors still want to do it, you would have to reimburse them? 

Ms. Kary: They would do it as a vendor. They would be just like Scheels and Wall Mart. 

Senator Heckaman: Who assumes the responsibly when there are discrepancies about 
the licenses sold and the money collected. I know one District had that issue come up. 

Ms. Kary: The county auditors are responsible for those vendors. And they have to keep 
the law , and they are the ones that are bonding. By law they are in charge of the vendors. 



Senate Appropriations Committee 
HB 1158 
03-30-2015 
Page 3 

Senator Heckaman: Do you get into the investigating of these cases? 

Ms. Kary: This incidence, yes. The Association of Counties are counting the county 
auditors like a middle man. 

Senator O'Connell: I buy my license on line and the SS # is still on there. 

Ms. Kary: That was taken care of. Only the last 4 of the social security number is seen on 
there. We are working for the future; you wouldn't use your full social. We are working on 
a standardized ID. 

Donnell Preskey, ND Association of Counties testified in favor of HB 1158 and provided 
written Testimony Attached # 2, this bill is a policy change and it only makes sense to 
transfer this state responsibility to the state. There was a question what auditors wanted 
to stay, I heard from Bottineau County and Sioux County that they wanted to continue. 

Chairman Holmberg closed the Hearing 

Senator Carlisle moved a Do Pass. Senator Robinson seconded the Do Pass. 

Chairman Holmberg: Call the roll on a do pass on HB 1158. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 13; Nay: O; Absent: 0. The carrier goes back to Natural 
Resources. Senator Armstrong will carry the bill. The hearing was closed on HB 1158. 



'1 ·- ,1 C) - J_) Date: __ ::;_J __ .J_--+---
Roll Call Vote #: ___ / __ 

2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTr� lJ {')/ 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. l ;? 

Senate Appropriations 
0 Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Committee 

-----------------------
Recommendation: �pt Amendment 

o Pass 0 Do Not Pass 
As Amended 

0 Without Committee Recommendation 
0 Rerefer to Appropriations 

Other Actions: 

0 Place on Consent Calendar 
0 Reconsider 0 

Motion Made By � Seconded By -----'---------
Senators Yes No Senators 

Chairman Holmberq � ./ Senator Heckaman 
Senator Bowman ,/' Senator Mathern 
Senator Krebsbach / Senator O'Connell 
Senator Carlisle v- Senator Robinson 
Senator Sorvaag y-' 
Senator G. Lee / 
Senator Kilzer .,.,--
Senator Erbele /,/ 
Senator Wanzek ·r 

Total (Yes) ____ / 3�-- No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Yes No 

y-;, 
y 

_....-;,. 
y 



Com Standing Committee Report 
March 30, 2015 9:45am 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_57 _009 
Carrier: Armstrong 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1158, as amended: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) 

recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
HB 1158, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_57 _009 
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Testimony to the 

House Energy & Natural Resources Committee 

Ja n u a ry 22, 2015 

By the North Da kota Associat ion of Cou nties 

HB 1158: Relating to Issuance of Game & Fish Licenses 

G ood M orn i ng Cha i rman  Porte r a nd com mittee mem bers, I 'm Donne l l  Preskey 

with the North Da kota Associat ion of Cou nties, I a lso se rve as Executive D i rector 

of the Cou nty Aud itor & Treasu rer  Associat ions .  Ou r  cou nty members strongly 

s upport this b i l l  a nd they were i nstru menta l i n  moving this concept forwa rd .  This  

has been a p riority ite m  for cou nty a ud itors for yea rs a nd afte r worki ng in  

cooperat ion w ith the N orth Da kota Game & F i sh we have HB 1158 before you 

today. 

Let me  give you some background  on  aud ito r's i nvo lve ment i n  Game  & F ish 

l i censes: 

When I go to La nders Conoco in B ismarck to buy my comb inat ion l icense to fish 

a nd hu nt, I pay $50, show my hu nters educat ion registrat ion, get my l icense a nd 

I'm on  my way to get my b ig  m u ley buck o r  wa l leye - or  i n  a good yea r  both. It's 

ou r  cou nty a ud itors who p lay a major role behind  the scenes m a ki ng su re those 

l icenses a re d i str ibuted a round  the state. They essentia l ly a re the "m idd le m a n" i n  

this bus i ness .  Ou r  53 a u d itors d istri bute l icenses and  gu ides to  400 vendors .  It's 

a lso the i r  job to manage those age nts and  co l l ect the revenue .  Cou nty aud itors 

keep  the l i cense a pp l ications  o n  fi le  a nd a l l  the stu bs of l i ce nses issued a long with 

reports of l icense sa les. It is the cou nty a u d itors who a re persona l ly l ia b le  for a l l  

the money co l lected o r  received b y  vendors .  It's a respons ib i l ity cou nty aud itors 

say i s  not worth the i r  t ime .  

U nder  cu rrent law, cou nty a ud itors rece ive some compensat ion from the North 

Da kota G a me & F ish. However, a s  you ca n see by the ta b le  i nc luded at the end  of 

my testimony, the re i m b u rsements a re nowhere near  what it costs aud itors i n  

t i m e  a nd resou rces. I s u rveyed 14 cou nties, ask ing them how m a ny hou rs they 

spend o n  G a me & Fish l i cens ing - what that tra ns l ates to i n  te rms of do l l a rs a nd 

a ny other expenses they have i n  trave l a n d  supp l ies .  



The ta b le  shows the G a me & F ish reim b u rsement to those same 14 cou nties so 

you ca n see how ineq u ita b le  this is for some cou nties .  

The b i l l  does a l l ow cou nty aud itors, u po n  request, to conti n ue to serve as a n  

agent t o  d istri bute hunt ing a nd fishing l i censes .  A n d  there a re some who have 

sa id  they do wish to conti nue  se l l i ng .  They recogn ize that in some ru ra l  a reas of 

the state, the cou rthouse may be the nea rest opt ion for outdoorsmen  a nd 

women to get a l icense .  

Aud itors a re in  s upport of the p ro posed t ime l i ne North Da kota G a me & F ish says 

is needed to m a ke this  tra ns ition . N DACo a nd the Aud itors Associat ion a l so 

s upport the G a me & F i sh budget. We know that budget is o uts ide of this b i l l  but it 

i nc ludes a n  FTE to assume the d uties of the 53 Aud itors. 

ND Game & Fish Licensing Costs 
vs. Reimbursements 

Cost to Counties Reimbursementto Counties 

Costs Hours 

Adams $4,500 300 Adams $291 

Barnes $1,400 70 Barnes $1,028 

Benson $2,000 60 Benson $937 

Bottinea u  $2,500 80 Bottineau $880 

Burl e igh $7,500 500 Burle igh $6,829 

Cass $2,000 80 Cass $9,459 

McHenry $4,000 80 McHenry $432 

Mclean $6,000 200 Mclean $1,525 

N e lson $1,000 35 N e l son $491 

O l i ver $1,200 50 O l i ver $138 

Ramsey $3,840 120 Ramsey $5,078 

Ransom $1,200 30 Ransom $476 

Renvi l l e  $1,200 40 Renvi l l e  $216 

Stutsman $5,000 150 Stutsman $2,786 

Total from 14 co. $43,340 1795 Tota l  from 14 co. $30,566 

Statewide County $3,100 128 

Average 

Average x 53 Counties $164,300 6,784hours Statewide TOTAL $68,811 

z.. 
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House Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

Testimony on HB 1 1 5 8 

Kim Kary, Chief Administrative Services Division 

North Dakota Game and Fish Department 

January 22, 20 1 5  

Chairman Porter and members of the House Energy and Natural Resources committee, my name 

is Kim Kary, Chief of Administrative Services Division of the North Dakota Game and Fish 

Department and I am testifying in support of HB 1 1 58 .  

The department has worked in conjunction with the ND Association of  Counties to draft this bill 

which would eliminate the mandate for county auditors to issue game and fish licenses and to 

appoint agents and transfer that responsibility to the department effective April 1 ,  2016 .  This bill 

would also allow county auditors to sell licenses as an agent if they choose and require all agents 

to sell licenses electronically by April 1 ,  20 1 6. Currently county auditors are responsible for 

appointing the agents, bonding them, collecting revenue, issuing them license tags and guides, 

and answering questions. The 53 county auditors manage approx. 400 agents across the state. If 

county auditors no longer issue Game and Fish licenses and manage the agents, the entire 

responsibility would be on the department' s  licensing section which only consists of 4 Licensing 

Specialists. The auditor currently is the primary contact for phone calls from agents regarding 

what license to issue, how to issue a specific license, how to correct wrong information, how to 

void a license, etc. ,  with the department licensing section also receiving some of these calls. 

Calls to the licensing section will significantly increase once the department is solely responsible 

for the agents. It would not be possible for Game and Fish, at the current staffing level, to 

provide the necessary fiscal management, training of the online system, monthly correspondence, 

daily questions, etc. 

In order to implement this bill, the department would need to hire one new FTE, effective July 1 ,  

20 1 5 . The cost of this FTE to the department would be approx. $ 1 08,028 salary/benefits (salary 

data taken from the Governor's compensation package), $8,800 operating costs and $9,500 travel 

per biennium. 

While the effective date of this bill is for the next licensing season (April 1 ,  201 6), the new FTE 

would need to be hired by July 1 ,  20 1 5  to allow for an orderly transition of taking over 



managing the agents and getting them online to issue licenses; currently there are approx. 7 1  

agents online. This hire date only allows for approx. 8 months to put procedures in place, to have 

all agents bonded, and to perform online training of approx. 300 of the 400 agents. The 

department would want agents online for a month before the new license season begins April 1 ,  

20 1 6. Once the agents are issuing licenses using the department' s  online system, there will be 

on-going questions regarding the online system, training on new updates, resolving user errors, 

information on season dates, etc. ,  for which staff support wil l  be needed. 

The proposed bill would also require one-time programming costs to our Game and Fish online 

licensing system of $55,3 8 1  per a quote from ITD. This programming will setup an ACH 

payment collection that will sweep the agent' s  accounts twice a month and deposit money into 

the Game & Fish fund. The new FTE, in addition to previously stated duties, will monitor all 

ACH transactions, verify them with licensing records, and reconcile any differences with 

supporting documentation for audit purposes. 

This bill also would decrease our expenditures by approx. $70,500 per year because it eliminates 

the cost of commissions paid to county auditors, which is currently a standing and continuing 

appropriation from the Game and Fish fund. These commissions, are currently set in code and 

are based on license sales, so they fluctuate year to year. The above amount is the average of the 

past two years of commissions paid to county auditors. 

As previously stated, the department would need one new FTE (Licensing Specialist II) in the 

amount of $ 1 08,028 for salaries and benefits and $ 1 8,300 in additional on-going operating costs, 

totaling $ 1 26,328 for the biennium. Plus an additional one-time expenditure in 20 1 5- 1 7  for 

programming costs for the licensing system of $5 5 ,3 8 1 .  It would eliminate the commissions 

paid to county auditors for the issuance of licenses which is approximately $70,500 for one year. 

After the first year, this bill would result in a slight decrease of our expenditures. 

• 1 5- 1 7 : $ 1 08,028 + 1 8 ,300 + 55 ,3 8 1  - 70,500 = $ 1 1 1 ,209 
• 1 7- 1 9 : $ 1 08,028 + 1 8,300 - 1 4 1 ,000 = ($ 1 4,672) Expenditure savings 

For the previously stated reasons, the FTE and the corresponding increase in appropriation is 

critical to this bill .  

This concludes my testimony. I would be happy to answer any questions. 

7 



Senate Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

Testimony on HB 1 1 5 8  

Kim Kary, Chief Administrative Services Division 

North Dakota Game and Fish Department 

March 1 3 , 20 1 5  

Chairman Schaible and members of the Senate Energy and Natural Resources committee, my 

name is Kim Kary, Chief of Administrative Services Division of the North Dakota Game and 

Fish Department and I am testifying in support of HB 1 1 58 .  

The department has worked in conjunction with the ND Association of  Counties to draft this bill 

which would eliminate the mandate for county auditors to issue game and fish licenses and to 

appoint agents and transfer that responsibility to the department effective April 1 ,  20 1 6. This bill 

; would also allow county auditors to sell licenses as an agent if they choose and require all agents 

to sell licenses electronically by April 1 ,  20 1 6. Currently county auditors are responsible for 

appointing the agents, bonding them, collecting revenue, issuing them license tags and guides, 

and answering questions. The 53 county auditors manage approx. 400 agents across the state. If 

county auditors no longer issue Game and Fish licenses and manage the agents, the entire 

responsibility would be on the department' s  licensing section which only consists of 4 Licensing 

Specialists. The auditor currently is the primary contact for phone calls from agents regarding 

what license to issue, how to issue a specific l icense, how to correct wrong information, how to 

void a license, etc . ,  with the department licensing section also receiving some of these calls. 

Calls to the licensing section will significantly increase once the department is solely responsible 

for the agents. It would not be possible for Game and Fish, at the current staffing level, to 

provide the necessary fiscal management, training of the online system, monthly correspondence, 

daily questions, etc. 

In order to implement this bill, the department would need to hire one new FTE, effective July 1 ,  

20 1 5 . The cost of this FTE to the department would be approx. $ 1 08,028 salary/benefits (salary 

data taken from the Governor' s compensation package), $8,800 operating costs and $9,500 travel 

per biennium. 

While the effective date of this bill is for the next licensing season (April 1 ,  20 1 6), the new FTE 

would need to be hired by July 1 ,  20 1 5  to allow for an orderly transition of taking over 

l .  \ 



managing the agents and getting them online to issue licenses; currently there are approx. 7 1  

agents online. This hire date only allows for approx. 8 months to put procedures in place, to have 

all agents bonded, and to perform online training of approx. 300 of the 400 agents. The 

department would want agents online for a month before the new license season begins April 1 ,  

20 1 6. Once the agents are issuing licenses using the department's  online system, there will be 

on-going questions regarding the online system, training on new updates, resolving user errors, 

information on season dates, etc . ,  for which staff support will be needed. 

The proposed bill would also require one-time programming costs to our Game and Fish online 

licensing system of $55,3 8 1  per a quote from ITD. This programming will setup an ACH 

payment collection that will sweep the agent' s  accounts twice a month and deposit money into 

the Game & Fish fund. The new FTE, in addition to previously stated duties, will monitor all 

ACH transactions, verify them with licensing records, and reconcile any differences with 

supporting documentation for audit purposes. 

It is important to note that this bi l l  would decrease our expenditures by approx. $70,500 per year 

($ 1 4 1 ,000/biennium) because it eliminates the cost of commissions paid to county auditors, 

which is currently a standing and continuing appropriation from the Game and Fish fund. These 

commissions, are currently set in code and are based on license sales, so they fluctuate year to 

year. The above amount is the average of the past two years of commissions paid to county 

auditors. After the first biennium, the decrease of commissions paid to county auditors will 

offset the increase of an FTE and corresponding operating costs as shown below. 

In 20 1 7- 1 9, this bill would result in a net decrease of approx. $ 1 5,000 of expenditures : 

• 1 5- 1 7 : $ 1 08,028 + 1 8 ,300 + 55,3 8 1  - 70,500 = $ 1 1 1 ,209 
• 1 7- 1 9 : $ 1 08,028 + 1 8 ,300 - 1 4 1 ,000 = ($ 1 4,672) Expenditure Savings 

As stated above and as reflected in the fiscal note, the addition of one new FTE and the 

corresponding increase to salaries and operating costs to our 20 1 5 - 1 7  appropriation is critical to 

this bi ll .  

This concludes my testimony. I would be happy to answer any questions. 

\ .2 



Testimony to the 

Senate Energy & Natural Resources 

March 13th, 2015 

By the North Dakota Association of Cou nties 

HB 1158: Relating to Issuance of Game & Fish Licenses 

Cha i rma n Scha ib le a nd com mittee members, I 'm Don ne l l  Preskey with the North 

Da kota Association of Cou nties, I a lso serve as  Executive Director of the County 

Aud itor & Treasurer  Associat ions. Our  cou nty members strongly support th is  b i l l  

a nd they were i nstru menta l i n  moving th is concept forward . Th i s  has been a 

priority item for county aud itors for years. We have worked in  cooperation with 

the North Da kota Ga me & Fish Depa rtment to get this b i l l  before you th is sess ion.  

The a ud itors a re essentia l ly the "middle man" i n  the Game & Fish l icense 

bus iness. The 53 cou nty aud itors d istribute l icenses to bus inesses in their  county 

who a re otherwise known as  the "agents" . There a re 400 agents statewide .  It's 

a lso the aud itors' respons ib i l ity to co l lect the revenue from the vendors for a l l  

so ld l i censes . County aud itors keep the l icense a pp l ications on  f i le and  a l l  the 

stu bs of l icenses issued a long with reports of l i cense sales. Accord i ng to Centu ry 

Code, it is the cou nty aud itors who are persona l ly l i ab le for a l l  the money 

co l lected or  rece ived by vendors .  It's a respons ib i l ity cou nty aud itors be l ieve 

cou ld be performed much more effic iently by the Ga me a nd F ish Depa rtment. 

U nder  cu rrent law, cou nty aud itors rece ive some compensation from the North 

Da kota Ga me & Fish.  However, as you ca n see by the ta b le included at the end of 

my test imony, the re imbursements in most cases a re nowhere near what it costs 

aud itors i n  t ime a nd resources. I su rveyed 14 cou nties, ask ing them how many 

hours they spend on Game & F ish l icens ing, what that trans lates to in  terms of 

do l la rs a nd a ny other  expenses they have in  trave l  a nd suppl ies. The second ta ble 

shows the Game & Fish re imbursement to those same 14 cou nties so you ca n see 

how ineq u itab le  th is is for some counties. 

z . 1 



ND Game & Fish Licensing Costs 
vs. Reimbursements 

Cost to Counties Reimbursementto Counties 

Costs Hours 

Adams $4,500 300 Adams $291 

Ba rnes $1,400 70 Barnes $1,028 

Be nson $2,000 60 Be n son $937 

Bott ineau $2,500 80 Bott ineau $880 

Burleigh $7,500 500 Burleigh $6,829 

Cass $2,000 80 Cass $9,459 

McHe n ry $4,000 80 McHe nry $432 

Mclean $6,000 200 Mclean $1,525 

Ne lson $1,000 35 Ne lson $491 

Ol iver $1,200 so Ol iver $138 

Ramsey $3,840 120 Ra msey $5,078 

Ransom $1,200 30 Ra nsom $476 

Renvi l l e  $1,200 40 Renvi l l e  $216 

Stutsman $5,000 150 Stutsman $2,786 

Total from 14 co. $43,340 1795 Total  from 14 co. $30,566 

Statewide County $3,100 128 

Ave rage 

Average x 53 Counties $164,300 6,784 hours Statewide TOTAL $68,811 

Game and  F ish has provided information that shows after yea r one of the agency 

ta k ing over the service they wi l l  expect to see a net revenue i ncrease . It is very 

im porta nt to note that the e l im inat ion of fees Game & F ish cu rrently pays 

counties would offset the ongoing cost. 

H B  1 158 is a po l icy cha nge that br ings effic iency to government. It on ly ma kes 

sense to sh ift a state respons ib i l ity back to the state . 

z . z 



Prese nted by: 

Befo re :  

Date : 

HOUSE BILL NO. 1 1 58 

Jeff Bitz 
Speci a l  F u n ds Ad m i nistrator 
North Dakota Insura nce Department 

Senate Ene rgy and Natura l  Resou rces 
Senator Donald Schaible,  C ha i rman 

M a rc h  1 3, 20 1 5  

TESTIMONY 

3 

Mr.  C hairman and members of the committee, I appear before you today in  support of 

House Bi l l  No .  1 1 58 .  My name is Jeff Bitz, I am the Di rector of the Specia l  Funds 

D ivision of the North Dakota Insurance Department. 

The State Bond ing Fund provides fidel ity bond coverage to the State of North Dakota 

and its pol itical subd ivis ions,  includ ing counties, townships, cities, park d istricts and 

school d istricts . The bond covers publ ic officials and employees for theft of money and 

p roperty. 

Estab l ished by the Leg islature in 1 9 1 9 , no premium has been charged the State of 

North Dakota and its pol it ica l subdivisions for this coverage since 1 953.  The State 

Bonding Fund serves 2 , 9 9 1  bondholders with a combined insured va lue of 

approximately $704 m il l ion . House Bi l l  No .  1 1 58 does not increase the risk to the Fund 

and would not increase Fund workload . 

The Fund a lso provides bonds of agents appointed by cou nty aud itors to d istribute 

h u nting and fish ing l icenses or stamps pursuant to N . D .C .C .  § 20. 1 -03. 1 7 . The Fund 

charges $ 1 0  for each agent bonded . The amount of coverage afforded under th is 

section is $ 1 5, 000 per agent per year. 
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We offer the attached amendment to N . D .C .C .  § 26 . 1 -2 1 -09 . 1 in the State Bond ing 

Fund chapter to make it consistent with what is proposed in  House Bi l l  No.  1 1 58 .  Our 

amendment removes the reference to county aud itor and replaces i t  with the d i rector of 

the game and fish department. This amendment is needed to al ign the new structure for 

game and fish l icenses as it is addressed i n  the Bond ing Fund chapter. 

I am happy to take any questions.  
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Prepared by the North Dakota 
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March 1 3 , 201 5 

PROPOS E D  AM E N DM ENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1 1 58 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  remove the second "and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2,  after "20 . 1 -03-20" i nsert " ,  and 26 . 1 -2 1 -09. 1 "  

Page 3 ,  after l ine 30,  insert:  

"SECTION 5 .  AME N D M E NT. Section 26. 1 -2 1 -09 . 1  of the North Dakota 
Century Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

26.1 -21 -09. 1 .  Bonds of agents a ppoi nted to distri bute h u nti n g  and 
fis h i n g  l i censes or sta m ps - Pre m i u ms - Determ i n ation of e l ig i bi l ity. The 
annua l  prem ium for a bond of an agent appointed by a county auditor the d irector 
of the game and fish department to d istribute hunting and fish ing l icenses or 
stamps pursuant to section 20. 1 -03- 1 7  is  ten dol lars .  The premium must be paid 
to the fund pursuant to rules adopted by the commissioner. The commissioner 
shal l  deposit the premiums with the state treasurer to the cred it of the fund . The 
commissioner may red uce or wa ive the premium if it is determined that funds 
received pursuant to this section are sufficient to cover potential claims on the 
bonds of agents appointed to d istribute hunting and fish ing l icenses or  stamps. 
The commissioner shal l  determine the cond itions and qua l ifications of agents 
bonded under th is section .  The amount of coverage afforded under this section is 
fifteen thousand dol lars per agent per year . "4 

Ren umber accord ing ly 
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Senate Appropriations Committee 

Testimony on HB 1 1 5 8  

Kim Kary, Chief Administrative Services Division 

North Dakota Game and Fish Department 

March 30, 20 1 5  

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, my name is Kim 

Kary, Chief of Administrative Services Division of the North Dakota Game and Fish Department 

and I am testifying in support of HB 1 1 58 .  

The department has worked in  conjunction with the ND Association of Counties to draft this bill 

which would eliminate the mandate for county auditors to issue game and fish licenses and to 

appoint agents and transfer that responsibility to the department effective April 1 ,  201 6. This bill 

would also allow county auditors to sell licenses as an agent if they choose and require all agents 

to sell licenses electronically by April 1 ,  20 1 6 . Currently county auditors are responsible for 

appointing the agents, bonding them, collecting revenue, issuing them license tags and guides, 

and answering questions. The 53 county auditors manage approx.  400 agents across the state. If 

county auditors no longer issue Game and Fish licenses and manage the agents, the entire 

responsibility would be on the department' s  licensing section which only consists of 4 Licensing 

Specialists. The auditor currently is the primary contact for phone calls from agents regarding 

what license to issue, how to issue a specific license, how to correct wrong information, how to 

void a license, etc. ,  with the department licensing section also receiving some of these calls. 

Calls to the licensing section wil l  significantly increase once the department is solely responsible 

for the agents .  It would not be possible for Game and Fish, at the current staffing level, to 

provide the necessary fiscal management, training of the online system, monthly correspondence, 

daily questions, etc. 

In order to implement this bill, the department would need to hire one new FTE, effective July 1 ,  

20 1 5 . The cost of this FTE to the department would be approx. $ 1 08,028 salary/benefits (salary 

data taken from the Governor's compensation package), $8,800 operating costs and $9,500 travel 

per biennium. 

While the effective date of this bill is for the next licensing season (April 1 ,  201 6), the new FTE 

would need to be hired by July 1 ,  20 1 5  to allow for an orderly transition of taking over 
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managing the agents and getting them online to issue licenses; currently there are approx. 7 1  

agents online. This hire date only allows for approx. 8 months to put procedures i n  place, to have 

all agents bonded, and to perform online training of approx. 300 of the 400 agents. The 

department would want agents online for a month before the new license season begins April 1 ,  

20 1 6. Once the agents are issuing licenses using the department' s  online system, there will be 

on-going questions regarding the online system, training on new updates, resolving user errors, 

information on season dates, etc. ,  for which staff support wil l  be needed. 

The proposed bill would also require one-time programming costs to our Game and Fish online 

licensing system of $5 5 ,3 8 1  per a quote from ITD. This programming will setup an ACH 

payment collection that wil l  sweep the agent's  accounts twice a month and deposit money into 

the Game & Fish fund. The new FTE, in addition to previously stated duties, wil l  monitor all 

ACH transactions, verify them with licensing records, and reconcile any differences with 

supporting documentation for audit purposes. 

It is important to note that this bill would decrease our expenditures by approx. $70,500 per year 

($ 1 4 1 ,000/biennium) because it eliminates the cost of commissions paid to county auditors, 

which is currently a standing and continuing appropriation from the Game and Fish fund. These 

commissions, are currently set in code and are based on license sales, so they fluctuate year to 

year. The above amount is the average of the past two years of commissions paid to county 

auditors. After the first biennium, the decrease of commissions paid to county auditors will 

offset the increase of an FTE and corresponding operating costs as shown below. 

In 20 1 7- 1 9, this bill would result in a net decrease of approx. $ 1 5 ,000 of expenditures : 

• 1 5- 1 7 : $ 1 08,028 + 1 8,3 00 + 55,3 8 1  - 70,500 = $ 1 1 1 ,209 
• 1 7- 1 9 : $ 1 08,028 + 1 8,300 - 1 4 1 ,000 = ($ 1 4,672) Expenditure Savings 

As stated above and as reflected in the fiscal note, the addition of one new FTE and the 

corresponding increase to salaries and operating costs to our 20 1 5- 1 7 appropriation is critical to 

this bill .  

This concludes my testimony. I would be happy to answer any questions. 
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By the North Da kota Associat ion of Cou nties 

HB 1158: Relating to Issua nce of Game & Fish Licenses 

Cha i rma n Ho lmberg a nd com mittee members, I 'm Donne l l  Preskey with the 

North Dakota Association of Cou nties, I a lso serve as  Executive D irecto r of the 

Cou nty Aud itor & Treasurer Associat ions.  Our  cou nty members strongly su pport 

th i s  b i l l  and  they were i nstru menta l in  moving th is  concept forwa rd . This has  been 

a priority item for cou nty aud itors for yea rs .  We have worked in  cooperation with 

the North Da kota Game & Fish Depa rtment to get this b i l l  before you th is sess ion.  

The a ud ito rs a re essentia l ly the "middle man" in the G a me & Fish l icense 

bus i ness. The 53 cou nty aud ito rs d istribute l icenses to bus inesses in  their  cou nty 

who a re otherwise known as the "agents" . There a re 400 agents statewide.  It's 

a lso the aud ito rs' respons ib i l ity to col lect the revenue from the vendors for a l l  

sold l icenses. Cou nty aud itors keep the l icense a pp l ications on fi le and  a l l  the 

stu bs of l i censes issued a long with reports of l icense sa les .  Accord ing to Centu ry 

Code, it is the cou nty a ud itors who a re persona l ly l i a b le for a l l  the money 

co l lected o r  rece ived by ve ndors. I t's a respons ib i l ity cou nty aud itors bel ieve 

cou ld be performed much more effic ient ly by the Game a nd F ish Depa rtment. 

U nder  cu rrent law, cou nty aud ito rs receive some compensation from the North 

Da kota Game & Fish .  However, as you can see by the ta b le inc luded the 

re imbu rse ments in  most cases a re nowhere near what i t  costs aud itors i n  t ime 

and resou rces. I su rveyed 14 cou nties, ask ing them how many hou rs they spend 

on Game & Fish l icens i ng, what that tra ns lates to in  terms of do l l ars and a ny other  

expenses they have in  trave l and  supp l ies. The second ta b le shows the Ga me & 
Fish re imbursement to those sa me 14 cou nties so you ca n see how i nequ itable 

th is  is for some cou nties. 
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N D  Game & Fish Licensing Costs 
vs. Reimbursements 

Cost to Counties Rei mburse me ntto Counties 

Costs Hours 

Adams $4,500 300 Adams $291 

Ba rnes $1,400 70 Barnes $1,028 

Be nson $2,000 60 Be n son $937 

Botti neau $2,500 80 Bott ineau $880 

Burle igh $7,500 500 Burl e igh $6,829 

Cass $2,000 80 Cass $9,459 

McHe n ry $4,000 80 McHe n ry $432 

Mclea n  $6,000 200 Mclean $1,525 

N e l son $1,000 35 Ne l son $491 

Ol iver $1,200 so Ol iver $138 

Ra msey $3,840 120 Ramsey $5,078 

Ransom $1,200 30 Ransom $476 

Renvi l l e  $1, 200 40 Renvi l le $216 

Stutsman $5,000 150 Stutsman $2,786 

Total from 14 co. $43,340 1795 Total from 14 co. $30,566 

Statewide County $3,100 128 

Ave rage 

Average x 53 Counties $164,300 6,784hours Statewide TOTAL $68,811 

It's im portant to stress th is next fact when cons ider ing the fi sca l note. The 

revenue cou nties cu rrently rece ive fo r Game & Fish l icense sa les wi l l  stay with 

Game & F ish if H B  1 158 passes. The agency has ind icated after yea r  one of the 

agency ta ki ng over th is  respons ib i l ity they wi l l  expe r ience a revenue  in crease. 

M r. Cha i rman, HB 1158 is a pol icy cha nge that br i ngs effic iency to government .  It 

on ly ma kes sense to tra nsfe r this state respons ib i l ity to the state. 


